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CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL
SECURITIES LAWS

Plaintiff City Pension Fund for Firefighters and Police Officers in the City of Miami

Beach ("Plaintiff') alleges upon personal knowledge as to allegations specifically pertaining to

Plaintiff and Plaintiffs counsel, and upon information and belief and in reliance on the

investigation of counsel as to all other matters, as follows:

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. This is a federal securities class action brought on behalf of all purchasers of the

common stock and American Depositary Receipts ("ADRs") of Aracruz S.A. ("Aracruz" or the

"Company") who purchased the Company's securities between April 7, 2008 and October 2,

2008, inclusive (the "Class Period"), seeking to pursue remedies under the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act")



2. Aracruz is a major Brazilian manufacturer of forest products . Their main

products are bleached eucalyptus pulp and high-grade hardwood, which they market to

manufacturers of consumer paper products around the world.

3. During the Class Period, Aracruz entered into undisclosed currency derivative

contracts to purportedly hedge against the Company's U.S. dollar exposure, essentially

"shorting" the U.S. dollar. The Company characterized the use of these contracts as protection

against foreign interest rate volatility and assured investors that this type of trading did not

represent "a risk from an economic and financial standpoint." However, these contracts violated

Company policy in that they were far larger than necessary. Simply put, the currency derivative

contracts were pure speculation on the part of Aracruz - a high-stakes gamble that went

undisclosed to the Company's shareholders.

4. As the U.S. dollar strengthened against the Brazilian Real, the value of Aracruz's

currency derivative contracts dwindled, resulting in an ultimate mark-to-market loss for the

Company of over $2 billion. As a result of Aracruz's clandestine currency wager, credit rating

agencies downgraded Aracruz, the Company's CFO resigned, and Aracruz's stock suffered a

severe decline, plummeting to the lowest levels in 14 years. On October 3, 2008, the price of the

ADRs traded on the New York Stock Exchange closed at $23.40, down $7.84 per share, a

decline of 25%. The Company's common stock suffered similar drastic declines on the Bovespa.

5. The Complaint alleges that, throughout the Class Period, Defendants failed to

disclose material adverse facts about the Company's financial well-being and future prospects.

Specifically, Defendants failed to disclose or indicate (1) that Aracruz entered into currency

derivative contracts to hedge against U.S. dollar exposure that were far larger than necessary; (2)

that such contracts violated the Company's hedge policy; (3) that the Company's financial
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statements were materially false and misleading in that they failed to account for the Company's

massive exposure to currency market fluctuations; (4) that the Company lacked adequate internal

and financial controls; and (5) that, as a result of the foregoing, the Company's statements about

its financial well-being and future business prospects were lacking in any reasonable basis when

made.

6. As a result of Defendants' wrongful acts, false and misleading statements and

omissions, and the precipitous decline in the market value of the Company's securities, Plaintiff

and other Class members have suffered significant losses and damages.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

7. The claims asserted herein arise under and pursuant to §§10(b) and 20(a) of the

Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. §§78(i)(b), 78(t) and 78t-1(a) and pendent common law claims.

8. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to 28

U.S.C. §§1331 and 1307 and Section 27 of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78aa.

9. The Court has personal jurisdiction over this action because Aracruz does

business in this District at Harbour Centre, 18851 NE 29th Ave., Suite 530 Aventura, FL 33180.

In connection with the acts and omissions alleged in this complaint, Defendants, directly or

indirectly, used the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, including, but not

limited to, the mails, interstate telephone communications, and the facilities of the national

securities markets.

PARTIES

10. Plaintiff, as set forth in the accompanying certification and incorporated by

reference herein, purchased the publicly traded securities of Aracruz in the form of ADRs at

artificially inflated prices during the Class Period and has been damaged thereby.
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11. Defendant Aracruz is a Brazilian corporation and maintains its principal executive

offices at Av. Brigadeiro, Faria Lima, 2,277 Sao Paulo, SP01452-000, Brazil. The Company's

ADRs are traded on the NYSE under the symbol "ARA." In addition, the Company's common

stock traded on the Sao Paulo Stock Exchange ("Bovespa") under the symbol "ARCZ6 BZ."

12. Defendant Carlos Alberto Vieira ("Vieira") has served as the Company's

Chairman of the Board during the Class Period.

13. Defendant Carlos Augusto Lira Aguiar ("Aguiar") has served as the Company's

Chief Executive Officer and President during the Class Period.

14. Defendant Isac Roffe Zagury ("Zagury") served as the Company's Chief

Financial Officer during the Class Period until his resignation following the news of the scandal

in October 3, 2008.

15. Defendants Vieira, Aguiar and Zagury are collectively referred to herein as the

"Individual Defendants."

16. During the Class Period, the Individual Defendants, as senior executive officers

and/or directors of Aracruz, were privy to confidential, proprietary and material adverse non-

public information concerning Aracruz, its operations, finances, financial condition and present

and future business prospects via access to internal corporate documents, conversations and

connections with other corporate officers and employees, attendance at management and/or

board of directors meetings and committees thereof, and via reports and other information

provided to them in connection therewith. Because of their possession of such information, the

Individual Defendants knew or recklessly disregarded that the adverse facts specified herein had

not been disclosed to, and were being concealed from, the investing public.
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17. The Individual Defendants are liable as direct participants in the wrongs

complained of herein. In addition, the Individual Defendants, by reason of their status as senior

executive officers and/or directors, were "controlling persons" within the meaning of §20(a) of

the Exchange Act and had the power and influence to cause the Company to engage in the

unlawful conduct complained of herein. Because of their positions of control, the Individual

Defendants were able to and did, directly or indirectly, control the conduct of Aracruz's

business.

18. The Individual Defendants , because of their positions with the Company,

controlled and/or possessed the authority to control the contents of its reports, press releases and

presentations to securities analysts and through them , to the investing public. The Individual

Defendants were provided with copies of the Company's reports and publicly disseminated

documents alleged herein to be misleading, prior to or shortly after their issuance and had the

ability and opportunity to prevent their issuance or cause them to be corrected. Thus, the

Individual Defendants had the opportunity to commit the fraudulent acts alleged herein.

19. As senior executive officers and/or directors and as controlling persons of a

publicly traded company whose ADRs were, and are, registered with the Securities Exchange

Commission ("SEC") pursuant to the Exchange Act, and were traded on the NYSE and governed

by the federal securities laws, the Individual Defendants had a duty to disseminate promptly

accurate and truthful information with respect to Aracruz's financial condition and performance,

growth, operations, financial statements, business, products, markets, management, earnings, and

present and future business prospects, to correct any previously issued statements that had

become materially misleading or untrue, so the market price of Aracruz's securities would be
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based on truthful and accurate information. The Individual Defendants' misrepresentations and

omissions during the Class Period violated these specific requirements and obligations.

20. The Individual Defendants are liable as participants in a fraudulent scheme and

course of business that operated as a fraud or deceit on purchasers of Aracruz's publicly traded

securities by disseminating materially false and misleading statements and/or concealing material

adverse facts.

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS

Background

21. Aracruz engages in the production and sale of bleached hardwood kraft market

pulp primarily in Brazil. The Company produces eucalyptus pulp, a hardwood pulp used by

paper manufacturers to produce various products, including premium tissue, printing and writing

papers, liquid packaging board, and specialty papers. Aracruz sells its products in North

America, Europe, Asia, and Brazil. The Company was founded in 1967 and is headquartered in

Aracruz, Brazil.

22. In the Company's annual report on Form 20-F filed with the SEC on March 31,

2008, Aracruz provided the following description of its sensitivity to exchange rate fluctuations

and its efforts to protect against such variations:

In accordance to the financial policies, balance sheet currency exposure to
exchange rate fluctuations was substantially protected at the end of 2007
according to U.S. GAAP rules.

The Company's foreign currency risk management strategy may use derivative

instruments to protect against foreign exchange rate volatility.

During 2007 the Company has recognized, as financial income, gains of US$57.3
million (2006 -US$88.8 million) related to derivative instruments registered in
BM&F - Brazilian Mercantile & Futures Exchange. These operations are marked
to market on a daily basis and as of December 31, 2007 outstanding contracts
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amounted US$0.6 million (as of December 31, 2006 outstanding contracts
amounted US$1.4 million).

It also has recognized gains of US$ 38.3 on swap transactions (TJLP or interest
long-term rate against Dollar). There were no such kind of derivative instruments
in 2006. These operations are marked to market, and at December 31, 2007, the
notional amount of these swaps totaled US$ 334.1 million with maturity in April
2010. The outstanding amount of these contracts were reported as an asset of US$
38.3 million.

As a result of our exposure to exchange rate fluctuation , the gain and loss on
currency remeasurement at the end of 2007 (after the local currency devaluation)
was a net gain of US$0.9 million.

Having our revenues substantially dollar-denominated and our costs and expenses
mostly local currency denominated, our costs are being increased due to the local
currency appreciation during 2007 on an ongoing basis, negatively impacting our
margins.

23. Aracruz provided the following regarding its derivative instruments and credit and

market risks:

The Company may use derivative and non-derivative instruments to implement
risk management strategy. However, by using derivative instruments, the
Company exposes itself to credit and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of a
counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contract. Market risk is
the adverse effect on the value of a financial instrument that results from a change
in interest rates, currency exchange rates, or commodity prices. The Company
addresses credit risk by restricting the counterparties to such derivative financial
instruments to major financial institutions. Market risk is managed by the
Treasury. The Company's foreign currency risk management strategy may use
derivative instruments to protect against foreign exchange rate volatility, which
may impair the value of certain of the Company's assets.

24. Accordingly, the Company's purported policy with respect to currency derivative

contracts is focused on managing the risk of currency exchange variations rather than using such

contracts as an alternate source of revenue. In other words, Aracruz told shareholders that its

currency hedging activities were designed to minimize risk, rather than create it.
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False and Misleading Statements

25. The Class Period begins on April 7, 2008 when the Company filed its Form 6-K

with the SEC reporting the Company's financial results for the three-month period ended March

31, 2008. The Form 6-K was signed by Defendant Aguiar and provided the following

description of the market risks that could affect the Company, including currency variations, and

its exposure to such risks:

Derivative instruments and risk management activities

The Company's foreign currency risk and interest rate management strategy may
use derivative instruments to protect against foreign exchange and interest rate
volatility.

During the three-month period ended March 31, 2008 the Company recognized,
gains of US$ 7.0 million on swap transactions (TJLP or interest long-term rate
against the US Dollar). There were no such derivative instruments for the three-
month period ended March 31, 2007. As of March 31, 2008, the notional amounts
of these swaps totaled US$ 345.4 million and the result outstand balance was an
asset of US$ 36.2 million.

26. Similarly, on July 7, 2008, Aracruz filed a Form 6-K with the SEC reporting

financial results for the three- and six-month periods ending June 30, 2008. The Form 6-K was

signed by Defendant Aguiar and again emphasized the conservative nature of Aracruz's

derivative instruments, stating:

Derivative instruments and risk management activities

The Company operates internationally and is exposed to market risk from foreign
exchange and interest rate volatility. The exposure of U.S. Dollar denominated
liability does not represent a risk from an economic and financial standpoint,
because the future payment in local currency of such liability is offset by
operating revenue which is expressed in U.S. Dollars since almost all sales
originate from exportation.

The Company' s foreign currency risk and interest rate management strategy may
use derivative instruments to protect against foreign exchange and interest rate
volatility.
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27. Notably absent from Aracruz's financial results during the Class Period was any

mention of the Company's substantial exposure to currency fluctuations or the true extent of its

investments in currency contracts hedging the U.S. dollar. Indeed, the Company had represented

that its exposure to U.S. Dollar liability did not represent a risk from an economic and financial

standpoint.

28. Despite these assurances that the Company's exposure to market risks does not

represent a financial risk, and that Aracruz implements derivative instruments to protect against

foreign exchange and interest rate volatility, ' the Company entered into purely speculative

currency derivative contracts as a purported "hedge" against the U.S. dollar.

29. The statements identified above were materially false and misleading because

Defendants failed to disclose (1) that Aracruz had entered into currency derivative contracts to

hedge against U.S. dollar exposure that were far larger than necessary; (2) that the Company's

financial statements were materially false and misleading because they failed to account for the

Company's substantial exposure to currency market fluctuations; (3) that the Company's

exposure to currency contracts was massive and violated the Company's own internal policy; (5)

that the Company lacked adequate internal and financial controls; and (6) that, as a result of the

foregoing, the Company's statements about its financial well-being and future business prospects

were lacking in any reasonable basis when made.

The Truth Comes To Light

30. On September 26, 2008, Aracruz filed a Form 6-K with the SEC announcing the

resignation of its Chief Financial Officer, Defendant Zagury. In addition, the Company

cautioned investors that it was in the process of assessing the size of losses caused by derivative

investments and a strengthening dollar. Aracruz said it did not yet know the amount of losses it
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had in these financial operations such as future currency contracts . The Form 6-K was signed by

Defendant Aguiar and stated in pertinent part as follows:

1. On this date the members of the Company's Board of Directors were informed
by the Company's internal controls and compliance committees that the
Company's current exposure to the financial derivatives instruments (called
"Target Forward") has been strongly affected by the recent US Dollar trade
prices instability, caused by the high volatility moment experienced by the
markets throughout the world.

2. The Company's Board of Directors were also told that: (i) the maximum loss
volume on derivative transactions and also the total exposure to futures
contracts based on U.S. Dollars may have exceeded the limits set forth in
Company's Financial Policy approved by the Board of Directors; (ii) the
Company's management has been taking all measures necessary to gradually
reduce the Company's exposure to such derivatives transactions so as to
minimize the impact in the Company's business; (iii) to enhance the
Company's related internal control; and (iv) in order to provide information to
the Chief Executive Officer and also to the members of the Company's Board
of Directors, it was necessary to verify and determine the current market value
of the Company's open interests and total exposures for which purpose the
Company has hired a specialized firm. The Chief Financial and Investor
Relations Officer formally requested on this date a leave of absence. The
Board of Directors resolved that the Company's management will continue to
use its efforts during the following months in order to reduce the impact
caused by the exposure to the derivatives instruments mentioned above.

3. Although the work of the external specialized firm is not yet concluded, the

only remaining exposure of the Company to the US Dollar refers to the selling

of the aforementioned derivatives, only to reflect the marking to market of

such contracts - effected under the influence of the current extreme volatility

of the markets. The Company's cash currently amounts to approximately US$

500 million. There is currently no indication that any potential adjustments, as

a consequence of the pending derivative contracts analysis, will materially

affect the Company's cash account.

31. Shortly after this announcement, Bloomberg published the following article:

Aracruz Celulose SA, the world's biggest eucalyptus-pulp maker, said it's
assessing the size of losses caused by derivatives investments and a strengthening
dollar. Chief Financial Officer Isaac Zagury resigned.

Aracruz said it doesn't yet know the amount of losses it had in financial
operations, such as future currency contracts, according to a regulatory filing the
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Aracruz, Brazil-based company posted last night. The company said it plans to
disclose details on the financial operations before releasing third-quarter earnings.

The pulp maker didn't name a person to replace Zagury.

32. On October 3, 2008, Aracruz filed a Form 6-K with the SEC, signed by

Defendant Aguiar, in which the Company revealed that the "fair value" of its currency-related

derivative contracts on September 30, 2008 was negative 1.95 billion Reais, or $1.02 billion.

The Form 6-K provided in pertinent part as follows:

1. The Company is predominantly an exporter, with 98% of its revenues

denominated in US Dollars while 15% of its indebtedness denominated, and

approximately 75% of its production costs incurred, in Brazilian Reais.

2. A consulting firm hired to analyze the Company's operations with derivative
instruments examined derivative contracts maintained by the Company and
determined a "fair value" of such contracts of approximately negative
US$1.02 billion, utilizing the base date of September 30, 2008. In making this
determination, the interest rate curve, the currency volatility and the exchange
rate at closing - all of which have been extraordinarily influenced by the
recent extreme instability of the global financial markets - were considered.

33. The investing public was shocked at the extent of Aracruz 's loss. Following this

announcement , the Company's ADRs and common stock plunged 25% on the NYSE and

Bovespa. Morgan Stanley cut its earnings estimate for Aracruz, Merrill Lynch downgraded the

stock to "neutral" from "buy," and Merrill Lynch lowered the forecast for the Company's ADR's

to $49 from $50. In addition, both Moody's and Standard & Poor's stated that they may lower

Aracruz's ratings should the losses prove to be bigger than announced.

34. In an article published on October 3, 2008, Bloomberg provided the following

commentary on the announcement:

Aracruz Celulose SA, the world's biggest eucalyptus-pulp maker, dropped the
most in at least 14 years in Sao Paulo trading after saying it may lose about $1
billion from derivative investments.
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Aracruz plunged 1.6 reais, or 25 percent, to 4.85 reais in Sao Paulo Stock
Exchange trading, the biggest loss since at least Aug. 2, 1994. The stock has
dropped 62 percent this year.

The Brazilian currency's 24 percent slump since Aug. 1, after a four-year winning

streak, is leading to losses for commodity exporters who sought to hedge against a

weaker dollar. Aracruz said in a statement late yesterday that the "fair value" of

its currency-related derivative contracts on Sept. 30, the end of last quarter, was

negative 1.95 billion reais, or $1.02 billion, after Brazil's real slumped.

"Nobody thought it would be such a big loss," said Guilherme Sand, who helps
manage the equivalent of $330 million at Solidus Brokerage in Porto Alegre,
Brazil. "It looks like, to lose that much, they probably were leveraged in their
bets."

Aracruz last week said Isac Zagury, 57, resigned as chief financial officer. Sadia
SA, Brazil's second-biggest food maker, fired CFO Adriano Lima Ferreira
because of derivative investments that violated the company's policy and led to a
loss of 760 million reais. Derivatives are financial instruments whose value is
based on an underlying asset.

Aracruz said the contracts have an average term of 12 months and most cash is
only disbursed or received on the maturity date. The Aracruz, Brazil-based
company said that under Brazilian accounting rules it will take a charge of 330
million reais after the weaker real increased the value of its foreign-currency debt
in the third quarter.

Outlook

Aracruz had its earnings estimates cut by Morgan Stanley after reporting a wider
accounting loss on derivatives than the bank expected. Merrill Lynch & Co.
downgraded the stock to "neutral" from "buy."

"On a stress scenario, we could see Aracruz losing its investment-grade status
andfacing increasedfinancing costs for their new growth projects," Merrill
analysts including Marcos Assumpcao said in a report.

The Merrill analysts lowered their forecast for the company's American

depositary receipts to $49 from $90. The ADRs tumbled 25 percent to $23.40 in

New York.

The Morgan Stanley analysts expect Aracruz to report a loss of $3 per ADR in the
third quarter, compared with the previous estimate of a profit of $1.64. The
analysts said their rating on the company is under review. Each ADR represents
10 preferred Class B shares.
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The slump in the shares ofAracruz may trigger a change in the terms ofa
proposed merger with Votorantim Celulose e Papel SA, Santander analysts
Felipe Reis, Alex Sciacio and Victoria Santaella said in a report today.

VCP is seeking to merge operations with Aracruz to grab a third of the world's
eucalyptus-pulp market. In August, VCP agreed to pay 2.71 billion reais to double
its stake in the rival. VCP and Aracruz shareholders last month agreed to the
merger to cut costs and gain global market share.

Debt Ratings

Aracruz and VCP may have their debt ratings changed by Moody's Investors
Service.

Moody's said today it may lower Aracruz's rating ofBaal, the second-lowest
investment grade, should its losses from derivatives prove bigger. It said it may
raise VCP's Baa3 rating, the lowest investment grade, should it succeed in
becoming the controlling shareholder of Aracruz.

Standard & Poor's also said it may lower Aracruz's debt ratingfrom BBB, also
the agency's second-lowest investment- grade rating.

Aracruz processes eucalyptus from about 700,000 acres of plantations in the south
and southeast of Brazil into pulp, a raw material for paper. Eucalyptus yields
short-fiber pulp, suited for the production of higher-quality paper. Aracruz
produces about a quarter of the world's eucalyptus pulp.

35. On October 6, 2008, the Company's fortunes turned further downward as

Moody's and Standard & Poor's said they may lower their debt ratings on Aracruz and Goldman

Sachs recommended that investors sell the Company's shares. On this news, the Company's

stock tumbled 15% to R$4.10 on Bovespa trading.

36. On this same date, Bloomberg published the following article commenting on the

development in which a Goldman Sachs analyst questions the Company's direction and the full

extent of its losses attributable to failed currency bets:

Aracruz Celulose SA, the world's biggest maker of eucalyptus pulp, fell to the
lowest in almost six years after Moody's Investors Service and Standard & Poor's
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said they may lower their debt ratings after a derivatives loss while Goldman
Sachs Group Inc. recommended investors sell the shares.

Aracruz tumbled 15 percent to 4.10 reais in Sao Paulo trading, the lowest since
November 2002.

Aracruz said in an Oct. 2 statement that the "fair value" of its currency-related
derivative contracts on Sept. 30, the end of last quarter, was negative 1.95 billion
reais ($1.02 billion) after Brazil's real slumped.

Gains in the dollar against the real won't be enough to compensate for the losses,
Goldman analyst Marcelo Aguiar wrote in a note. Separately, Citigroup Inc. said
it expects Aracruz's American depositary receipts to trade at $65, a 5.8 percent
cut from analyst Tereza Mello's previous estimate of $69 an ADR.

"It is not clear how much is still exposed and how much larger/smaller (than
$1.02 billion) the effective cash loss could be in the next 12 months," Mello
wrote in a note today.

"Another concern is management direction, as we still don't know how
decisions are being madefollowing the CFO departure."

Aracruz's Chief Financial Officer Isac Zagury resigned last month after the
company announced losses from derivative operations. Chief Executive Officer
Carlos Augusto Aguiar will replace him on an interim basis, Aracruz said Sept.
26.

Moody's and S&P both assigned the company the second-lowest investment-
grade rating. Moody's said Oct. 3 it put its Baal rating under review, while
S&P said it may lower Aracruz's ratingfrom BBB.

Votorantim Celulose & Papel SA, which on Oct. 3 said it will postpone the
conclusion of its merger agreement with Aracruz, fell 1 percent to 22.75 reais.

37. On October 10, 2008, Standard & Poor's lowered Aracruz's debt rating on

concerns that the Company's loss may widen. Bloomberg published the following article in

response to this news:

Aracruz Celulose SA, the pulp maker that posted a derivatives loss of about $1

billion, had its debt rating lowered by Standard & Poor's on concern that the
slumping Brazilian currency may widen the company's loss.
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The rating was reduced one grade to BBB-, the lowest for investment-quality
securities, from BBB, S&P said today in a statement. The rating may be lowered,
S&P said.

Aracruz, the world's biggest eucalyptus-pulp maker, reported a $1.02 billion loss
as of Sept. 30, based on the "fair value" of currency-related derivatives because
the real slumped. Chief Financial Officer Isac Zagury resigned last month after
the company reported the derivatives situation.

"The rating action reflects the company 's contingent liabilities from significant
derivative positions, a heightening of currency volatility, and the worsening of
credit market conditions," Standard & Poor's analyst Marcelo Costa said in the
report from Sao Paulo.

38. On October 14, 2008, the Company announced that it had canceled plans to pay

interest on capital to shareholders. Aracruz had previously stated that it would pay

approximately $41 million to shareholders on October 15, 2008.

39. On October 17, 2008, Aracruz filed a Form 6-K with the SEC, signed by

Defendant Aguiar, in which the Company reported financial results for the three- and nine-month

periods ending September 30, 2008. The Company posted its first quarterly loss in six years

after it took a charge of about $1 billion as a result of its bad currency bets. Regarding the

Company's risk management in relation to foreign currency risk, the Form 6-K provided as

follows:

Foreign currency risk: the Company may incur losses as a consequence of
fluctuations in exchange rates, which impact invoiced nominal values or loans
obtained in the market. To reduce this risk, the company has entered into
derivative contracts (see item (c) below).

The indebtedness and the results of the Company's operations are significantly
affected by the exchange rate (U.S. dollar). Our foreign currency debt amounts to
US$ 1,610,840 on September 30, 2008 (and US$ 963,920 on December 31,
2008). The Company exports 98% of its production of eucalyptus pulp.
Consequently, revenues and accounts receivable related to these exports are
denominated in U.S. dollars (see Note 4 for details on our accounts receivable
with foreign customers).
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Derivatives

Aracruz and its subsidiaries operate internationally and are exposed to market
risks resulting from changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.
The exposure to risk of liabilities denominated in US Dollars is mitigated in part
by operating revenues, almost totally derived from export Sales, whereas foreign
currency obligations are settled in local currency.

***

The Company and its subsidiaries operate internationally and are exposed to

market risks as a result of foreign exchange rate variations. Any extreme

movement in the Brazilian currency, the Real, against the U.S. Dollar may have a

material impact on the amounts at which the Company's assets and liabilities

expressed in U.S. Dollars, or vice versa, are realized at subsequent dates. As of

September 30, 2008, the Real was quoted against the U.S. Dollar at the rate of

R$1.9143 = US$1, increasing to R$2.3924 = US$1 on October 8, 2008, before

decreasing to R$2.1854 = US$1 on October 16, 2008 (PTAX closing rate). The

U.S. Dollar financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as of

September 30, 2008 were prepared in accordance with accounting practices

generally accepted in the United States of America which require that assets and

liabilities denominated in foreign currency be updated monetarily based on the

exchange rates of the respective foreign currencies as of the balance sheet date

and, therefore, do not reflect the effects of changes in exchange rates subsequent

to the balance sheet date.

40. In response to this news, Bloomberg published the following article commenting

on the drastic consequences to the Company as a result of its improper currency hedging

activities:

Aracruz Celulose SA, the world's biggest eucalyptus-pulp maker, posted its first
quarterly loss in six years after it took a charge of about $1 billion on bad
currency bets.

The third-quarter net loss of 1.64 billion reais ($764 million), or 1.59 reais per
share, compares with net income of 260.9 million reais, or 25 centavos, a year
earlier, the Aracruz, Brazil-based company said today in statement to the
country's securities regulator. Results are based on generally accepted accounting
principles in Brazil.

Aracruz shares have plunged 57 percent since Sept. 25, when Chief Financial
Officer Isac Zagury resigned and the company said it would post losses from
currency investments. The company posted a third-quarter expense of 2.1 billion
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reais. A weaker Brazilian real, which has declined 27 percent since the start of
August, may generate more losses that will erode operating gains in the fourth
quarter, said Felipe Ruppenthal, a paper and pulp analyst at Geracao Futuro
Corretora de Valores Ltda.

"Companies weren't prepared for the big currency fluctuations, and Aracruz

was betting against the dollar," Ruppenthal said yesterday in an interview. "For

the future, Aracruz is very dependent on the currency."

Net revenue fell 8.2 percent to 801. 6 million reais in the quarter, while the cost of
goods sold fell 4.5 percent to 546.9 million reais.

Aracruz shares fell 12 centavos, or 3.3 percent, to 3.57 reais at 10:35 a.m. in Sao
Paulo trading.

U.S. GAAP

Under generally accepted accounting principals in the U.S., the company reported
a net loss of $545.9 million, compared with net income of $105.3 million a year
earlier, Aracruz said in a separate statement.

A racruz also said today it will suspend an expansion project at its plant in

Guaiba, Brazil, for one year to `preserve the company 's liquidity." Investments

in the project in Rio Grande do Sul state will resume when market conditions

improve.

Aracruz is also slowing its landpurchases andforest developmentfor its

Veracel 2 project, suspending landpurchases for its Minas Gerais project and

reducing distribution ofdividends and interestfor stockholders.

The company said it hired an independent company to determine whether its
derivatives operations were in line with company policy.

41. On October 20, 2008, Moody's announced that it had cut Aracruz's debt rating to

below investment grade - a downgrade of two levels to Ba2 from Baa3. This was the second

downgrade in one month, and Moody's indicated that it may cut the Company's debt rating even

further.

42. An article published by The Wall Street Journal dated October 22, 2008 and

entitled "Big Currency Bets Backfire" summarized the risky currency bets in which Aracruz

engaged:

17



As global stock markets have plunged in recent months, so has the value of
almost everything else, from Mexico's peso to the price of oil. That's left some
companies that made big wagers on the direction prices were headed reeling from
unexpected losses.

Throughout Latin America, companies are telling investors they have lost
millions, in some cases billions, of dollars due to foreign-exchange gambles
that, in some cases, had little to do with their core businesses.

For now, however, such losses appear to be most widespread in Brazil and
Mexico. In Brazil, the growing list of blue-chip casualties includes paper-pulp
giant Aracruz Celulose SA...

***

The surprise disclosures have sent stock prices tumbling, and regulators in both

countries are investigating whether companies adequately disclosed their

trading risks to investors.

Some local reports have speculated that the damage in Brazil alone could exceed
$30 billion and may affect two hundred companies.

"We really don't have the details yet, and it's definitely not clear where the losses
are. There are a lot of transparency issues," says Alexander Carpenter, senior
vice president for Latin America at Moody's Investors Service, which has issued a
flurry of credit downgrades and warnings across the region.

The bad bets were made using currency derivatives -- contracts tied to the value
of the U.S. dollar. Companies lost badly when the dollar shot up in value starting
in early September as investors cashed out of investments in emerging markets,
fleeing to safer havens. And as companies raced to close out their positions they
forced local currencies to tumble still further.

Latin American central banks, seeing risks to their economies, sold billions of
dollars from their reserves to currency markets to prop up their currencies and
cushion the blow from derivatives losses.

Mexico alone burned through about 13% of its international currency reserves.
Brazil's government is considering extending loans to affected companies.

"The companies that bet and lost will have to face up to their responsibilities,"
Brazilian President Luiz Inacio Lula da Silva said recently as corporate losses
mounted. "Obviously, what Brazil will always be disposed to do is create
conditions so that the financial system can lend."
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In Mexico, authorities said they are investigating whether Comercial Mexicana
and other companies properly disclosed the currency bets that resulted in investor
losses. Under Mexican law, failure to disclose certain transactions could result in
fines, and in some rare cases, criminal charges.

Among the first Latin American companies to swallow a loss was Brazilian pork
and poultry processor Sadia SA, which has seen its stock slide 45% since it
announced in September it had lost $360 million in currency trades.

"We had no idea they had these kinds of contracts," says Marcos De Callis, who
runs a $300 million Brazil fund for Schroder Investment Management and lost
money when Sadia's stock price plummeted. "When you buy stocksfrom an
industrial company, you expect [them] to stick to their business."

Still, the finger-pointing has started. Brazil's Sadia fired its chief financial officer
and is considering suing its bankers for pushing dangerous investments.

In other cases, risk-control experts say weak governance is to blame.

43. On October 27, 2008, Bloomberg published an article reporting that Aracruz

would be sued by shareholders in Brazil who are seeking compensation for recent currency

losses. The article stated in pertinent part as follows:

Aracruz SA and Sadia SA shareholders will sue the companies' management and
seek compensation for recent currency losses, Folha de S. Paulo reported.

Attorney Alexandre Dantas Fronzaglia told Folha he plans to sue Aracruz's

controlling shareholders, including Votorantim Celulose e Papel SA, Banco Safra

SA, the Lorentzen family and Brazil's state-controlled development bank, known

as BNDES, the newspaper said.

Brazil ' s securities and exchanges regulator, known as CVM, is receiving a
growing number of complaints from investors about companies that lost money
after the local currency fell, Folha said.

44. Following Moody's and Standard & Poor's lead, on October 29, 2008, Fitch also

downgraded Aracruz's debt ratings on predictions that the Company's loss could exceed $1

billion. A Business Wire article published on this date provided the following:
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Fitch Ratings has downgraded the following ratings of Aracruz Celulose S.A.

(Aracruz):

--Local currency Issuer Default Rating (IDR) to 'BB-' from 'BB+';

--Foreign currency IDR to 'BB-' from 'BB+';

--National scale rating to `A(bra)' from `AA-(bra)'.

All of these ratings remain on Rating Watch Negative.

These rating actions reflect an expectation by Fitch that Aracruz will unwind its
derivative positions and that realized losses may exceed US$1.5 billion. Further,
Fitch expects Aracruz will fund a majority of these losses with debt provided by
the counterparties to these transactions, resulting in a near doubling of the
company's leverage. The Rating Watch Negative indicates that these ratings
could be downgraded further if the actual losses and associated debt obligation
are larger than anticipated. Aracruz's credit ratings could also be lowered if the
terms and conditions of any agreement with the derivative counterparties are
meaningfully lower than the present value of the mark-to-market losses on its
derivative instruments, viewing this situation as similar to a distressed debt
exchange.

45. On November 4, 2008, Aracruz announced that it agreed to unwind 97% of its

wrong-way currency derivative bets resulting in a $2.13 billion loss.

46. On November 5, 2008, The Wall Street Journal published an article entitled

"Aracruz to Unwind Bad Bets on Currency." The article reported that the Company will pay off

its more than $2 billion in losses over a number of years. In addition, the effects of the currency

hedge fallout will stunt the Company's growth for years to come, and a planned acquisition of

the Company by Grupo Votorantim has been placed on hold. The article stated in pertinent part

as follows:

Brazilian pulp giant Aracruz Celulose SA, which owes more than $2 billion to a
group of banks due to soured currency bets, reached a deal that will let it pay off
its losses over a number of years.

The deal, between Aracruz and a handful of banks, saves the company from a
potentially crippling payment, but will leave it with a debt load for years.
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The deal 's hefty price tag underscored the amount of damage suffered by some
Latin American companies from sharp moves in global currencies during the
financial crisis . Many of these companies bet that the commodity boom would
continue to drive up currencies like the Brazilian real against the dollar. But Latin
American currencies crumbled in recent months as investors cut risk and fled
currencies of commodity producers.

***

It could take five to 10 years for Aracruz to pay back the $2.13 billion it owes to

the banks, said Itau Securities analyst Marcelo W. de Brisac. Paying offthe debt

will make it harderfor the company to fund investments, limiting future

growth. Terms of the repayment will be determined by the end of the month.

"All growth plans are now out the window," said Mr. de Brisac. The company's
debt service payments will equal bout 40% of its earnings before interest, taxes
and amortizations, he estimates.

The losses have put a snag in other arrangements. Aracruz was being acquired by

Grupo Votorantim when it disclosed the losses. The deal is on hold and it's not

clear when it will be revived.

47. As a result of Aracruz's improper currency bets, the Company is saddled with a

loss of over $2 billion and its plans for future growth have been halted. Aracruz is now on the

precipice of complete failure, leaving shareholders without any options to escape the Company's

financial meltdown.

UNDISCLOSED ADVERSE INFORMATION

48. The market for Aracruz's securities was an open, well-developed and efficient

market at all relevant times. As a result of the materially false and misleading statements and

failures to disclose described herein, Aracruz's securities traded at artificially inflated prices

during the Class Period. Plaintiff and the other members of the Class purchased or otherwise

acquired Aracruz's securities relying upon the integrity of the market price of Aracruz's

securities and market information related to Aracruz, and have been damaged thereby.

49. During the Class Period, Defendants materially misled the investing public,

thereby inflating the price of Aracruz's securities , by publicly issuing false and misleading
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statements and omitting to disclose material facts necessary to make Defendants' statements, as

set forth herein, not false and misleading. Such statements and omissions were materially false

and misleading in that they failed to disclose material adverse non-public information and

misrepresented the truth about the Company, its business and operations, as alleged herein.

50. At all relevant times, the material misrepresentations and omissions particularized

herein directly or proximately caused or were a substantial contributing cause of the damages

sustained by Plaintiff and the other members of the Class. As described herein, during the Class

Period, Defendants made or caused to be made a series of materially false and misleading

statements about Aracruz's business, prospects and operations.

51. These material misstatements and omissions had the cause and effect of creating

in the market an unrealistically positive assessment of Aracruz and its business, prospects and

operations, thus causing the Company's securities to be overvalued and artificially inflated at all

relevant times. Defendants' false and misleading statements during the Class Period resulted in

Plaintiff and other members of the Class purchasing the Company's securities at artificially

inflated prices, thus causing the damages complained of herein.

SCIENTER ALLEGATIONS

52. . As alleged herein, Defendants acted with scienter in that Defendants knew that

the public documents and statements issued or disseminated in the name of the Company during

the Class Period were materially false and misleading; knew that such statements or documents

would be issued or disseminated to the investing public; and knowingly and substantially

participated or acquiesced in the issuance or dissemination of such statements or documents as

primary violations of the federal securities laws.
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53. As set forth herein, Defendants, by virtue of their receipt of information reflecting

the true facts regarding Aracruz, their control over, receipt and/or modification of Aracruz's

allegedly materially misleading statements and omissions, and/or their positions with the

Company which made them privy to confidential information concerning Aracruz, participated

in the fraudulent scheme alleged herein.

54. The ongoing fraudulent scheme described in this complaint could not have been

perpetrated over a substantial period of time, as has occurred, without the knowledge and

complicity of the personnel at the highest level of the Company, including the Individual

Defendants.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

55. Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil

Procedure 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of all persons who purchased or otherwise acquired Aracruz

ADRs and/or common stock on the NYSE or Bovespa during the Class Period and who were

damaged thereby (the "Class"). Excluded from the Class are Defendants, members of the

immediate family of each of the Individual Defendants, any subsidiary or affiliate of Aracruz and

the directors, officers and employees of the Company or its subsidiaries or affiliates, or any

entity in which any excluded person has a controlling interest, and the legal representatives,

heirs, successors and assigns of any excluded person.

56. The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members is

impracticable. While the exact number of Class members is unknown to Plaintiff at this time

and can only be ascertained through appropriate discovery, Plaintiff believes that there are

thousands of members of the Class located throughout the United States. Throughout the Class

Period, Aracruz ADRs and common stock were actively traded on the NYSE and Bovespa (open
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and efficient markets). As of March 12, 2008, the Company had over 549 million shares

outstanding, of which ADRs represent over 359 million shares. Record owners and other

members of the Class may be identified from records maintained by Aracruz and/or its transfer

agents and may be notified of the pendency of this action by mail, using a form of notice similar

to that customarily used in securities class actions.

57. Plaintiffs claims are typical of the claims of the other members of the Class as all

members of the Class were similarly affected by Defendants' wrongful conduct in violation of

federal law that is complained of herein.

58. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of the

Class and have retained counsel competent and experienced in class and securities litigation.

59. Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the Class and

predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class. Among the

questions of law and fact common to the Class are:

a. whether the federal securities laws were violated by Defendants' acts and

omissions as alleged herein;

b. whether Defendants participated in and pursued the common course of

conduct complained of herein;

c. whether documents, press releases, and other statements disseminated to

the investing public and the Company's shareholders during the Class Period misrepresented

material facts about the business, finances, financial condition and prospects of Aracruz;

d. whether statements made by Defendants to the investing public during the

Class Period misrepresented and/or omitted to disclose material facts about the business,

finances, value, performance and prospects of Aracruz;
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e. whether the market price of Aracruz securities during the Class Period was

artificially inflated due to the material misrepresentations and failures to correct the material

misrepresentations complained of herein; and

f. the extent to which the members of the Class have sustained damages and

the proper measure of damages.

60. A class action is superior to all other available methods for the fair and efficient

adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all members is impracticable. Furthermore, as

the damages suffered by individual Class members may be relatively small, the expense and

burden of individual litigation make it impossible for members of the Class to individually

redress the wrongs done to them. There will be no difficulty in the management of this suit as a

class action.

STATUTORY SAFE HARBOR

61. The federal statutory safe harbor provided for forward-looking statements under

certain circumstances does not apply to any of the allegedly false statements pleaded in this

Complaint. Furthermore, many of the statements pleaded herein were not identified as "forward-

looking statements" when made, or indicated that actual results "could differ materially from

those projected." Nor were there any meaningful cautionary statements identifying important

factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the statements made therein.

62. Defendants are liable for the forward-looking statements pleaded because, at the

time each of those forward-looking statements was made, Defendants knew the forward-looking

statement was false and the forward-looking statement was authorized and/or approved by an

executive officer of Aracruz who knew that such statement was false when made.
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LOSS CAUSATION

63. During the Class Period, as detailed herein, Defendants engaged in a scheme to

deceive the market and a course of conduct that artificially inflated the prices of Aracruz's

securities and operated as a fraud or deceit on Class Period purchasers of Aracruz's securities by

failing to disclose to investors that the Company's financial results were materially misleading

and misrepresented material information. When Defendants' misrepresentations and fraudulent

conduct were disclosed and became apparent to the market, the prices of Aracruz's securities fell

precipitously as the prior inflation came out of the Company's securities price. As a result of

their purchases of Aracruz's securities during the Class Period, Plaintiff and the other Class

members suffered economic loss.

64. By failing to disclose the extent of the Company's currency derivative contracts,

investors were not aware of the true state of the Company's financial status. Therefore,

Defendants presented a misleading picture of Aracruz's business and prospects. Thus, instead of

disclosing during the Class Period the true state of the Company's business, Defendants caused

Aracruz to conceal the truth.

65. Defendants' 'false and misleading statements had the intended effect and caused

Aracruz's common stock to trade at artificially inflated levels throughout the Class Period.

However, as a direct result of the Company's problems coming to light, Aracruz's common stock

price fell over 25% immediately following the announcement of the Company's exposure to

currency derivative contracts, and continued to decrease over the following days and months.

This drop removed the inflation from the price of Aracruz's securities, causing real economic

loss to investors who purchased the Company's securities during the Class Period.
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66. The decline in the price of Aracruz's common stock after the truth came to light

was a direct result of the nature and extent of Defendants' fraud finally being revealed to

investors and the market. The timing and magnitude of Aracruz's ADR and common stock price

declines negates any inference that the loss suffered by Plaintiff and the other Class members

was caused by changed market conditions, macroeconomic or industry factors or Company-

specific facts unrelated to the Defendants' fraudulent conduct. The economic loss suffered by

Plaintiff and the other Class members was a direct result of Defendants' fraudulent scheme to

artificially inflate the prices of Aracruz's securities and the subsequent decline in the value of

Aracruz's securities when Defendants' prior misrepresentations and other fraudulent conduct

were revealed.

APPLICABILITY OF PRESUMPTION OF RELIANCE:
FRAUD ON THE MARKET DOCTRINE

67. At all relevant times, the market for Aracruz stock was an efficient market for the

following reasons, among others:

a. Aracruz securities met the requirements for listing , and were listed and

actively traded on the NYSE and Bovespa, both highly efficient markets;

b. As a regulated issuer, Aracruz filed periodic public reports with the SEC

and the NYSE;

c. Aracruz securities were followed by securities analysts employed by

major brokerage firms who wrote reports which were distributed to the sales force and certain

customers of their respective brokerage firms. Each of these reports was publicly available and

entered the public marketplace; and

d. Aracruz regularly issued press releases which were carried by national

newswires. Each of these releases was publicly available and entered the public marketplace.
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68. As a result, the market for Aracruz securities promptly digested current

information with respect to the Company from all publicly-available sources and reflected such

information in Aracruz's stock price. Under these circumstances, all purchasers of Aracruz

securities during the Class Period suffered similar injury through their purchase of stock at

artificially inflated prices and a presumption of reliance applies.

COUNT I
For Violations Of §10(b) Of The Exchange Act And Rule lOb-5 Promulgated Thereunder

Against All Defendants

69. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the allegations set forth above as though fully set

forth herein. This claim is asserted against all Defendants.

70. During the Class Period, Aracruz and the Individual Defendants, and each of

them, carried out a plan, scheme and course of conduct which was intended to and, throughout

the Class Period, did: (i) deceive the investing public, including Plaintiff and other Class

members, as alleged herein; (ii) artificially inflate and maintain the market price of Aracruz

securities; and (iii) cause Plaintiff and other members of the Class to purchase Aracruz securities

at artificially inflated prices. In furtherance of this unlawful scheme, plan and course of conduct,

Defendants Aracruz and the Individual Defendants, and each of them, took the actions set forth

herein.

71. These Defendants: (a) employed devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud; (b)

made untrue statements of material fact and/or omitted to state material facts necessary to make

the statements not misleading; and (c) engaged in acts, practices and a course of business which

operated as a fraud and deceit upon the purchasers of the Company's securities in an effort to

maintain artificially high market prices for Aracruz securities in violation of § 10(b) of the

Exchange Act and Rule I Ob-5. Defendants are sued as primary participants in the wrongful and
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illegal conduct charged herein. The Individual Defendants are also sued herein as controlling

persons of Aracruz, as alleged herein.

72. In addition to the duties of full disclosure imposed on Defendants as a result of

their making of affirmative statements and reports, or participation in the making of affirmative

statements and reports to the investing public, they each had a duty to promptly disseminate

truthful information that would be material to investors in compliance with the integrated

disclosure provisions of the SEC as embodied in SEC Regulation S X (17 C.F.R. § 210.01 et

seq.) and S-K (17 C.F.R. § 229.10 et seq.) and other SEC regulations, including accurate and

truthful information with respect to the Company's operations, financial condition and

performance so that the market prices of the Company's publicly traded securities would be

based on truthful, complete and accurate information.

73. Aracruz and the Individual Defendants, individually and in concert, directly and

indirectly, by the use of means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce and/or of the mails,

engaged and participated in a continuous course of conduct to conceal adverse material
6

information about the business, business practices, performance, operations and future prospects

of Aracruz as specified herein. These Defendants employed devices, schemes and artifices to

defraud, while in possession of material adverse non-public information and engaged in acts,

practices, and a course of conduct as alleged herein in an effort to assure investors of Aracruz's

value and performance and substantial growth, which included the making of, or the

participation in the making of, untrue statements of material facts and omitting to state material

facts necessary in order to make the statements made about Aracruz and its business, operations

and future prospects, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading,

as set forth more particularly herein, and engaged in transactions, practices and a course of

29



business which operated as a fraud and deceit upon the purchasers of Aracruz's securities during

the Class Period.

74. Each of the Individual Defendants' primary liability, and controlling person

liability, arises from the following facts: (i) each of the Individual Defendants was a high-level

executive and/or director at the Company during the Class Period; (ii) each of the Individual

Defendants, by virtue of his responsibilities and activities as a senior executive officer and/or

director of the Company, was privy to and participated in the creation, development and

reporting of the Company's operational and financial projections and/or reports; (iii) the

Individual Defendants enjoyed significant personal contact and familiarity with each other and

were advised of and had access to other members of the Company's management team, internal

reports, and other data and information about the Company's financial condition and

performance at all relevant times; and (iv) the Individual Defendants were aware of the

Company's dissemination of information to the investing public which they knew or recklessly

disregarded was materially false and misleading.

75. These Defendants had actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and omissions

of material facts set forth herein, or acted with reckless disregard for the truth in that they failed

to ascertain and to disclose such facts, even though such facts were readily available to them.

Such Defendants' material misrepresentations and/or omissions were done knowingly or

recklessly and for the purpose and effect of concealing Aracruz's operating condition, business

practices and future business prospects from the investing public and supporting the artificially

inflated price of its securities. As demonstrated by their overstatements and misstatements of the

Company's financial condition and performance throughout the Class Period, the Individual

Defendants, if they did not have actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and omissions
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alleged, were reckless in failing to obtain such knowledge by deliberately refraining from taking

those steps necessary to discover whether those statements were false or misleading.

76. As a result of the dissemination of the materially false and misleading information

and failure to disclose material facts, as set forth above, the market price of Aracruz securities

was artificially inflated during the Class Period. In ignorance of the fact that the market price of

Aracruz shares was artificially inflated, and relying directly or indirectly on the false and

misleading statements made by Defendants, upon the integrity of the market in which the

securities trade, and/or on the absence of material adverse information that was known to or

recklessly disregarded by Defendants but not disclosed in public statements by Defendants

during the Class Period, Plaintiff and the other members of the Class acquired Aracruz securities

during the Class Period at artificially inflated high prices and were damaged thereby.

77. At the time of said misrepresentations and omissions , Plaintiff and other members

of the Class were ignorant of their falsity, and believed them to be true. Had Plaintiff and the

other members of the Class and the marketplace known of the true performance, business

practices, future prospects and intrinsic value of Aracruz, which were not disclosed by

Defendants, Plaintiff and other members of the Class would not have purchased or otherwise

acquired Aracruz securities during the Class Period, or, if they had acquired such securities

during the Class Period, they would not have done so at the artificially inflated prices which they

paid.

78. By virtue of the foregoing, Aracruz and the Individual Defendants each violated

§ 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule I Ob-5 promulgated thereunder.
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79. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' wrongful conduct, Plaintiff and

the other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their purchases of the

Company's securities during the Class Period.

COUNT II
For Violations of §20 (a) of the Exchange Act

Against the Individual Defendants

80. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the allegations set forth above as if set forth fully

herein. This claim is asserted against the Individual Defendants.

81. The Individual Defendants were and acted as controlling persons of Aracruz

within the meaning of §20(a) of the Exchange Act as alleged herein. By virtue of their high-

level positions with the Company, participation in and/or awareness of the Company's

operations and/or intimate knowledge of the Company's actual performance, the Individual

Defendants had the power to influence and control and did influence and control, directly or

indirectly, the decision-making of the Company, including the content and dissemination of the

various statements which Plaintiff contends are false and misleading. Each of the Individual

Defendants was provided with or had unlimited access to copies of the Company's reports, press

releases, public filings and other statements alleged by Plaintiff to be misleading prior to and/or

shortly after these statements were issued and had the ability to prevent the issuance of the

statements or cause the statements to be corrected.

82. In addition, each of the Individual Defendants had direct involvement in the day-

to-day operations of the Company and, therefore, is presumed to have had the power to control

or influence the particular transactions giving rise to the securities violations as alleged herein,

and exercised the same.
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83. As set forth above, Aracruz and the Individual Defendants each violated §10(b)

and Rule lOb-5 by their acts and omissions as alleged in this Complaint. By virtue of their

controlling positions, the Individual Defendants are liable pursuant to §20(a) of the Exchange

Act. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' wrongful conduct, Plaintiff and other

members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their purchases of the Company's

securities during the Class Period.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of the Class, prays for judgment as

follows:

a) Declaring this action to be a class action pursuant to Rule 23 (a) and (b)(3) of the

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure on behalf of the Class defined herein;

b) Awarding Plaintiff and the other members of the Class damages in an amount

which may be proven at trial, together with interest thereon;

c) Awarding Plaintiff and the members of the Class pre-judgment and post-judgment

interest, as well as their reasonable attorneys' and experts' witness fees and other

costs; and

d) Awarding such other relief as this Court deems appropriate.

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury.

Dated: November 25, 2008 J441,1^A-By:

SAXENA HITE P.A.

Maya Saxena

Joseph E. White III

Christopher S. Jones

Lester R. Hooker

2424 N. Federal Highway
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